
 
OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 

2940 LIMITED LANE NW 
OLYMPIA WA 98502 

 
AGENDA of February 8, 2023  *  10:00 a.m. 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

 
Be courteous – mute your mic if not speaking 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA (action item) 
(Ask for any corrections, additions/omissions) 
 
CHAIR REPORT 
 

1. Chair to select Finance Committee members 
2. Finance Committee Update 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  - Comments limited to three minutes 

 

CONSENT AGENDA (action item) 
 

1. Minutes of the Regular meeting, January 11, 2023 
2. Expenditures and Disbursements – January 7, 2023 – February 2, 2023 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. State Auditor Report 

 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

1. Compliance Manager Update - Robert Moody 
2. Engineering Manager Update – Jennifer DeMay 
3. Senior Air Monitoring Technician Update – Odelle Hadley, Ph.D. 
4. Communications Manager Update – Dan Nelson 

o Campfire brochure 
o Campfire single page 

5. Administrative Services Manager Update – Lynn Harding 
6. Executive Director Update – Jeff Johnston, Ph.D. 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 

1. Legal Update – 350 Seattle 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION (To discuss any matter suitable for Executive Session under RCW 42.30.110) 

 
1. Executive Director Performance Evaluation 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
NEXT MEETING – March 8, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

ORCAA’s meeting will be available virtually  
 
If you would like to participate in the meeting via Zoom video conference, visit 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88654004897?pwd=NklndCtlUEtPY25UTlFWbG96eXEyQT09 join with 
Meeting ID: 886 5400 4897 and Passcode: N5MiRD 
 
If you would like to participate in the meeting via Zoom audio only, call 1-253-215-8782 and join with 
Meeting ID: 88654004897 and Passcode: 78745 
  

http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B2-FY23-2ndQuarterUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B3a-DraftBoardMinutesJanuary11-2023.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B3b-ExpendituresDisbursements.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B5-ComplianceManagerUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B6-EngineeringManagerUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B7-SeniorAirMonitoringTechnicianUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B8a-campfire%20brochure.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B8b-campfire%20single%20page.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/B9-Jeffs%20performance%20measures.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/February8-2023/Board/Workplan2022-2023.pdf
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88654004897?pwd=NklndCtlUEtPY25UTlFWbG96eXEyQT09


� ��������	
		������ ���������������� ���������������� ���������������������������������������� �����������!�� �"#$�% &$��'# �#���"#$�% ��((������)*+�,-./01�23 4
564789���������������� 4:46;<	9��������������������� <5;675
9��������������������� ,78=64		39������������� ;:> ;:>?*@�A�BCDEFGB.HEF 78
6855������������������ 7456
4
����������������������� 5	6;5:������������������������� ,75
65		3��������������� 	
> 44>?*I�A�BCDEFGB.HEF 	6=7	���������������������� 76
		��������������������������� 	6<;4��������������������������� 76<<8�������������������� 	<	> =5>)HHJC0�K1L.M/FC/.EH 5;<65
	������������������ 5:86


����������������������� 5:86<44����������������������� <44����������������������� 7

> =4>)MM1MMN1H/M 84865<5������������������ 8=:64=;����������������������� 
 ,8=:64=;3��������������� 
> 
> �#�OPE0ELQ�*R1FM.LS/ 7	6=8:�������������������� 7<6


������������������������� 
 ,7<6


3����������������� 
> 
> ������)MT1M/EM 75:645;������������������ 75	6:4
����������������������� 4464=;������������������������� ,4467453����������������� <
> <7> ������UCHV�@01CF.HL 5464<=�������������������� 	465

������������������������� 7464
<������������������������� ,=64=<3������������������� 45> ;5> ;4> ���� 76
8
657	9������������WEEVM/ER1�OVJPC/.EH�XFCH/ 7
64:	�������������������� 7
64:	������������������������� 	688
��������������������������� ,:6	8	3������������������� 	5> 		> 7=> ������Y 	47657
�����������������WEEVMNEZ1�K1VJP/.EH�XFCH/ <:6
7=�������������������� 7;
6


����������������������� 4=6<7=������������������������� ,7

68:73��������������� 87> 75> 
>����������� 
OPE0ELQ�BEH./EF.HL��,+B	[<3 756<

�������������������� 756<

������������������������� 7
6	<;������������������������� ,56	853������������������� ;4> ;7> 7> �������� 7=6==4�������������������O+)�A�@S11ZC�+1CZ�XFCH/ ;46;8:�������������������� :46
;;������������������������� 876<78������������������������� ,886<453����������������� 8:> 8=> 5>��!�� 8	6:4=�������������������)K+�XFCH/�\./S�O+) A������������������������������ 7576<

����������������������� 
 ,7576<

3��������������� 
> 
> 
>"�����]���̂ 
@*KOA�1V1FC0 7=:6<<4������������������ 7::65==����������������������� ;	64<;������������������������� ,77<6;8	3��������������� 5=> 84> 7

> 7654868:;9������������@*KOA_/C/1 75=6=:<������������������ 75468	;����������������������� <	647<������������������������� ,:56:7	3����������������� 5=> 85>O�_O@ 	46
7=�������������������� 5:65:<������������������������� 7	65
:������������������������� ,	46
;;3����������������� 5	> 	5> `���������a 7	868	:9���������������+1HC0/.1M�,?*23 	7;6<<
������������������ ;<6


������������������������� 7=6==4������������������������� ,<<6

83����������������� 	;> 	:7> `�������b���� 7546::	9���������������IHR1M/N1H/�IHPEN1 756784�������������������� 7
6


������������������������� 75674
������������������������� 5674
�������������������� 75	> 8
>B.MP100CH1EJM�K1R1HJ1 76::	���������������������� 76


��������������������������� 767;;��������������������������� 7;;����������������������� 77:> 74;>cJ.0V.HLGK1H/C0�IHPEN1 <=6;=8�������������������� <=6<=	������������������������� 	:6<5	������������������������� ,576
4
3����������������� 8:> <7>�dd��d��������(����"�����]���̂����ae�fX1H1FC0��JHV�@EH/.HL1HPQ�gFC\ A9���������������������������� 	;86=7<9��������������������� A9��������������������������������� ,	;86=7<39������������� 
> 
>#����������� �hij�hk�lm������������� �hn��hnolm������������������ nh�ophplkm������������������� enhk�lholnfm���������� ppq <5>���������������� ���������������� ����������������'rd��a������ �"#$�% &$��'# �#���"#$�% ��((������ �̂���� ��������	
		_C0CF.1M 7647	67=:9������������� 764=<65
<9������������������ :7<6=5<9��������������������� :;=65;
9�������������� 8:> <
>ONs0EQ11�c1H1t./M6�+CQFE00�-Cu1M 8==6	:	������������������ <4468;<����������������������� 	<;6844����������������������� 5
=6

=���������������� 8<> 84>#����� �̂����� �hnnnhpl�m������������� �h�onhkl�m������������������ nh�k�hp�nm������������������� nhnllh�kjm����������� 8;> 8:>v��� �̂���� �*tt.P1�_Jss0.1MG_N�OwJ.s[ :688:9�������������������� :65

9������������������������� 56=:	9������������������������� 8657:9������������������ 8:> 8	>XCME0.H1�21S.P01M 865=7���������������������� 46


��������������������������� 	6;	
��������������������������� 56	:
�������������������� 8<> 84>@ENsJ/1F�xCFVG_Et/[ 	56	
8�������������������� 546<:<������������������������� ;67	<��������������������������� 	=684
������������������ 7=> 8<>cV[�+FEt[�_1F[�y�-FCR10�K1.NT[ 
 76	

��������������������������� A����������������������������������� 76	

�������������������� 
> 
> �#�-FC.H.HL�y�@EHt1F1HP1M <64;<���������������������� 7;65=
������������������������� :6<77��������������������������� :6:;=�������������������� 8=> 7
> ������+FEt1MM.EHC0�_FM[ 8=6	=4�������������������� 4;6<

������������������������� 7;6<:8������������������������� 8=6=74������������������ 	4> 8;> 'rd��a������-101sSEH1 7	68:
�������������������� 7<6<

������������������������� <6:=	��������������������������� =64
:�������������������� 5:> 8
>+EM/CL1 86:55���������������������� <6


��������������������������� 56
7	��������������������������� 76=::�������������������� 4
> <	>IHMJFCHP1�,c0VL6�21S6�_/Ctt3 5<6:;	�������������������� 5:6


������������������������� 5=6	48������������������������� ,76	483������������������� 7
5> 7
7> =>v��� �̂������a��� 7		6557�����������������W100H1MM�+FELFCN 85;������������������������� 8<
������������������������������ 88�������������������������������� 8
4����������������������� 7
> 7
=> <>&�a]�z����{ ;	67=8�������������������+JT0.P�OVJPC/.EH :6:74���������������������� 546<4
������������������������� 	:64=8������������������������� ;6:44�������������������� ;:> =5> 4> ��]�����d�������� :	6:88�������������������B.MP100CH1EJM 5
7������������������������� <<
������������������������������ =4�������������������������������� 8<8����������������������� 7;> 7<> 7

> #���� 765<
6;;
9������������gJ1M�y�_JTMPF.s/.EHM 56:8	���������������������� 865

��������������������������� 	;:������������������������������ 86
		�������������������� 4> ;>)JV./G)PP/L 46<==���������������������� 746


������������������������� 767=8��������������������������� 786:
4������������������ ;> 87>K1H/A_C/100./1�*tt.P1 :

������������������������� 
 
 A���������������������������� 
> 55>BC.H/1HCHP1�A�@Es.1F 7
6=8;�������������������� 	68

��������������������������� 76
<
��������������������������� 765<
�������������������� 88> 87>21S.P01�+JFPSCM1 
 	46


������������������������� 
 	46


������������������ 
> 
>BC.H/1HCHP1�A�21S.P01M 	6555���������������������� 56=<
��������������������������� 	6::<��������������������������� 76
4<�������������������� ;5> <
>#�����v��� ��� nklh�kpm���������������� �liholim��������������������� n��h��nm��������������������� no�h�ipm�������������� 85> 8=>�&���a��]��d���������z����������+F.HP.sC0GIH/1F1M/�A�*tt.P1�c0VL 55
9����������������������� 886


9����������������������� 856=489����������������������� 549����������������������� 7

> 
>)0CFN�BEH./EF.HLG_1PJF./Q 	6	58���������������������� 	6<

��������������������������� 5<5������������������������������ 	678;�������������������� 78> 	8>|/.0./.1M 7<6:
8�������������������� 746<

������������������������� ;67=<��������������������������� =65
<�������������������� 88> 8:>}CH./EF.C0�y�_Jss0.1M 776485�������������������� 756<4:������������������������� <6;5;��������������������������� ;6:57�������������������� 8	> 8
>BC.H/1HCHP1�A�*tt.P1�c0VL[ =6		
���������������������� 7:6	

������������������������� 786=8<������������������������� 56	<<�������������������� :	> 58>U1CM1SE0V�INsFER1N1H/M 
 	;6


������������������������� 
 	;6


������������������ 
> 
>#�����&�a]{��d��{�z���������� �jh���m������������������ n�nhkolm��������������������� k�hnjpm����������������������� pjhikpm���������������� <=> 78>� ��]�����d��������WEEV_NEZ1�K1VJP/.EHGcEJH/Q 876<<
9������������������ 75:6


9��������������������� 4	68

9����������������������� ;<64

9���������������� 8<> 	>O@��*R1FM.LS/��11M 7	6=8:�������������������� 7<6


������������������������� 
 7<6


������������������ 
> 
>BEH./EF[�OwJ.s[G@+* 	46=4
�������������������� 586<

������������������������� 7;6=7=������������������������� 746<:7������������������ <	> 55>)K+�XFCH/�\./S�O+) 
 7576<

����������������������� 
 7576<

���������������� 
> 
>BEH./EF.HLAX1H1FC0�G�+B	[< 	67=	���������������������� <68=
��������������������������� 767:
��������������������������� 8657
�������������������� 	7> :>_1PJF./Q�g1sEM./�K1tJHVM 5
<������������������������� 
 7658<��������������������������� ,7658<3������������������� HGC HGC#����� ��]�����d���������ev����a���f l�hjipm������������������ ��phpj�m��������������������� l�hlppm����������������������� �pnhopom�������������� 	4> :>#�����'rd��a������ �hpn�hjp�m������������� �hjj�hk��m������������������ nh�i�hkk�m������������������� nhop�hji�m����������� piq 8<>v���b��d����e��(����f nkkhkjkm���������������� n�jhppim��������������������� n�hknkm����������������������� �&���~a�����(�v���b��d����e��(����f� ��������?1/�_JFs0JM�,g1t.P./3�/E�X1H1FC0��JHV���	
		 nkkhkjkm�����������������?1/�_JFs0JM�,g1t.P./3�/E�X1H1FC0��JHV���	
	5 � n�jhppim��������������������� #&��v�����73�Ous1HM1M�1uP11V.HL�7
>�Et�C�TJVL1/�PC/1LEFQ�,1CPS�MJTAPC/1LEFQ��+GK6�?EHA+GK6�c0VL6�*s1FC/.HL3�F1wJ.F1M�TECFV�CssFERC0[ 
7	=	
	5A0NS

*0QNs.P�K1L.EH�@01CH�).F�)L1HPQ"��d�������b�����̂��(��]���̂�&�a]��h��������h���'rd��a��������������������!�� ����a�'�a��]�������������� "��d������o�������i�qq���(��&�a]���

���������

;=>  �̂���� 76
;568
79������������

o�������i�qq���(��&�a]���



��������	
�������
���	��
������������������������������������� �!�"#"$%&'�()*��*'+&,�
-,+-.�/*0*12*'�3433 �567899897��:;<=�>?@?<AB�CDECFEGCGG 3H43IHJKLM���������������������������NOPQ�R��STUTVWT�XYZ[\]�̂T\_� àbcdadefg���������������������������hiQQR��jklTVmYnW_TZ�XYZ[\]�̂T\_ òabpqaffqrg���������������������69s897��tuvw�5xyxvz{ 3H4J4H34IM�����������������������|B<B}?@�:;<=�~�<��<�B<A���}?��?��@�B=����:��>;=�B� �g��������������������������������������������������>����@B���:;<=��?��@�B=����:��>;=�B� �g��������������������������������������������������>�� ����� tuvw�5xyxvz{��������8�9��������������� �¡ ���¢v£¤v¥{vz¦�tuvw§�̈��x©¤£xy�tuvw§ �zz£¥��ªx«£�¢¬��zz£§� ���®®���̄° hiQQ±��jklTVZT�²³VnYV́TV[µ�¶·̧¹�X̂�ºWḿTn�]TZZ�»Yn]T�¼½ ¾¿À¾ bceaÁÂÁg�������������������������Ã̄��Ä���̄° hiQQ±��»Yn]T�¼� ¾¿ÀÅ ÆÇÇ�ÈÇÉÊË����Ì ̄° hiQQ±��»TV\VnZ�ÍT[W_Ynµ�ÎTl³ZYnZ ¾¿Ï¿ dadÂpg��������������������������������®®���̄° hiQQ�Ð³_�ÑÐÐY[T�ºWY]mYV́ ¾¿ÀÀ Ầqaqqqg������������������������� KIJHK4ÒM�������������������®®���̄° hiQQ�Ð³_�Ó³VYn³_YV́�jÔWYlÕTVn ¾¿ÀÖ Âqaqqqg�����������������������������®®���̄° hiQQ�Ð³_�Î\n\×\ZT�Ø�jÔWYlÕTVn ¾¿ÀÏ Ầpaqqqg�������������������������Ù ����Ì ̄° hiQQ�Ð³_�¼\[\nY³VØÍY[Ú�ÛT\UTØ²³Õl ¾¿ÀÜ b̀cadpbg������������������������� ����¢v£¤v¥{vz¦�tuvwÙ ����Ì ̄° �¤£y{�Ý��¢v£¤v¥{vz¦�Þwu{�7{v{«xy�tuvwß Þ�z£uxyß àá4LH434âM������������������������ �Ù ����Ì ̄° 6vw¤v¥�ã9ä6��ä8��6s�tuvw�5xyxvz{� Þ¤vzyå��¤£y{�Ý�w{¬¤z¤£ß áHáÒæHçLLM����������������������� á3èçáè3433éêëìì�íîïð�ñòóô�íõö÷õøõùõò����������AB�>;�@=�<����}������}��	��B�����
;}���<�~�;<�� ����É��� M4 ������ �������<�B}B���}?�B�C�DC����:�<?@��?��B<��FGEFEGCGG� � � �� � � ����̄Ä��� Ì��� �� Ì̄ ����� °���� !"# �$$$$$$$ %&�'Ê(&��Ç)��É�)*Ç+�����Ê,+�+�,Ç-��Ê&������������ °�.�� !"# �$$$$$$$$/��� °�0��� �̄��� !"# �$$$$$$$$$$$//� 1()*�2&234�%5-,�6343-0*�+-045,*7�344�85-,7�&-�,*9&7+2:3è3è343ç %�;Ç)ÊÉ(��Ê&�'()���Ç�<<,Ê=Ç+�����*Ç�ÈÊ,+�Ê>�?�,Ç-�Ê,)��Ê�<<,Ê<,��Ç�Ç@<Ç&+��(,Ç)��&�AÊ&��&BÇ&-��C(&+)�oÇ@-Ç<��>Ê,�̀qÂp�D��ÉÇ�E�&+�̀qdq�ÆÇ-(,����?Ç<Ê)��)r���FCGE�CEGCGC�HI��B��?J@��
B=���KB�<B��A?�B��}�B����}�}B��}��<��A?�
�?<=��<KB���B<���

7{v{«xy�tuvw �
�LC(&+)��*��,Ç�*ÇÉ+��&�Ê(,��&M�--Ê(&��Ë��*�D*(,)�Ê&�AÊ(&���D,Ç)(,Ç,N)�O>>�-Ç��O;A%%�*)�Ê&Ç�>(&+�Ë��*�D*(,)�Ê&�AÊ(&���&+��)�,Ç>Ç,,Ç+��Ê�)��*Ç�PQÇ&Ç,É�C(&+P����%&�'Ê(&��Ç)��É�)*Ç+�����Ê,+�+�,Ç-��Ê&��Ê�)=Ç�>Ê,�)<Ç-�>�-�ÉÊ&B��Ç,'�-<��É�Ç@<Ç&+��(,Ç)�o�É+Ba�ÇR(�<'Ç&�a�+��)Çr����

~�<��<�B<A��S�~?���?@��:;<=�



 

 

Page 1 of 6 

 OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 
2940 Limited Lane NW 

Olympia, Washington 98502 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – Hybrid via Zoom 
 

January 11, 2023 
 
Members present: Jim Cooper, City of Olympia (Chair) 
 Greg Brotherton, Jefferson County (Vice Chair) (via Zoom) 
 Joan Cathey, City of Tumwater (via  Zoom) 
 Jill Warne, Grays Harbor County (via Zoom) 

Randy Neatherlin, Mason County (via Zoom) 
 Carolina Mejia, Thurston County 

Robin Vazquez, City of Lacey  
Mike French, Clallam County (via Zoom) 
 

Members absent: Pacific County 
 

Legal Counsel: Jeff Myers and Mike Throgmorton of Law, Lyman, Daniel, Kamerrer and 
Bogdanovich 

 
Staff Present: Jeff Johnston, Ph.D., Executive Director; Mike Shults, Compliance Supervisor; 

Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager; Odelle Hadley, Ph.D., Senior Monitoring 
Specialist; Dan Nelson, Communications Manager; Lynn Harding, Financial 
Services Manager; Robert Moody, Compliance Manager, Lauren Whybrew, 
Engineer, Rob Wyland, Air Quality Specialist, Bryson Downs, Air Quality 
Specialist, Tiffany Flores, Records Clerk, and Debbie Moody, Office 
Manager/Public Records Officer 

 
Cooper called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. and asked for a roll call of members and staff. New 
member Mike French, Clallam County gave a brief introduction noting he moved over from Port 
Angeles city council. Cooper noted we are still waiting on an appointee from Pacific County. 
 
Cooper asked for approval of the agenda. Vazquez moved approval, the motion was seconded and 
carried unanimously. 

 
CHAIR REPORT 
 
Cooper gave a brief update of the Personnel Committee noting they are working on the Executive 
Director’s performance review and will be bringing information to the full Board in February. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no general public comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Cooper asked approval of the Consent Agenda. Neatherlin moved approval of the Consent Agenda. 
The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

https://www.youtube.com/@ORCAADan


 

 

Page 2 of 6 

ORCAA Rule 6.2.7 and 6.2.8 amendment 
 
Cooper asked Johnston to brief the Board. Johnston explained in the 1980s Thurston County had 
exceeded air quality standards for particulate matter. At that time, Johnston noted, the cause was 
primarily indoor burning. Rules were put in place and these rules included restrictions on both indoor 
and outdoor burning. Beginning around 1996 we have been meeting the standards. 
 
Johnston explained the proposed rule change would allow campfires in Lacey, Olympia, and 
Tumwater; which would be consistent with all areas in western Washington. Important to note, there 
will be no change to the nuisance smoke, burning of garbage, fire safety, etc.  We have worked 
closely with the three cities and the fire departments, and they are all in support of this change. 
ORCAA’s compliance team will continue to focus on nuisance and burning of prohibited materials. 
 
Neatherlin wanted to clarify this will only change the enforcement of the campfires in the cities. We do 
not have authority to change city and county codes. Johnston agreed that ORCAA only enforces our 
regulations, not those of the cities and counties. We do work closely with them, but we are a small 
agency, and we enforce our rules and follow up on complaints. Cooper stated it is his understanding 
cities and counties have the power to institute more stringent fire safety can do their own rules. 
 
Brotherton noted he understands there is no other clean air agency with a ‘no campfire’ rule; are 
there any municipalities with prescriptive rules, not based on fire safety? Johnston explained there 
are none based on air quality. The city of Tumwater may have some rule about nuisance smoke, but 
there is nothing similar to our regulations. Nelson agreed, noting he had done some additional follow-
up with other agencies and municipalities. 
 
Cooper opened the public hearing at 10:20 a.m. Cooper noted he would have those present in the 
room speak first, then move on to those attending via Zoom. 
 
Terry Carr, City of Lacey. Carr is in favor of the rule change. He wasn’t even aware there was a ban.  
Carr stated his understanding for the change was due to homeless camps. Carr did ask what the fine 
are for burning.  Carr also asked about winter woodstove burn bans and why places such as Burger 
King can continue to burn?  
 
Cooper noted we would not be answering questions at this time but will respond after all comments 
are received. 
 
Jim Oberlander, City of Tumwater, resident of Thurston County for over 50 years.  Oberlander is 
opposed to the rule change. Oberlander was concerned with the density of housing and the impact 
smoke would have on neighbors. Oberlander did note he had filed a complaint regarding his 
neighbors burning and never got a response from ORCAA. Oberlander also noted the public notice 
on ORCAA’s website did not list the time, nor was there any mention of ADA accessibility--outreach 
needs work.  
 
Cooper asked Nelson to call on those via Zoom who wished to speak. 
 
Mark Bock, city of Olympia, is in favor of rule change. The information illustrates how the air quality 
issues, which were the initial impetus of the ban, have been largely resolved. Bock urged the Board to 
support the rule allowing recreational fires in the Olympia, Tumwater, and Lacey area. Maintaining the 
rules and education about how to do this appropriately is important to make sure it is safely done. 
Tye Gundel, co-director of Olympia Mutual Aid Partners (OlyMAP). Gundel explained OlyMAP is a 
local homeless services organization providing outreach services to people living unsheltered in 
Thurston County. Gundel noted she is here on behalf of OlyMAP in support of the rule change. One 
issue that has acted as a barrier to finding more effective strategies is the ban on recreational fires, 



 

 

Page 3 of 6 

which also doesn’t separate between survival and recreational burning. OlyMAP believes this rule 
change will have positive impacts on the broad community, including in ways that are not related to 
homelessness. 
 
Steve Brooks, Lacey Fire District 3 Chief, President of Thurston County Fire Chiefs’ Association and 
Washington Fire Chiefs. Brooks wanted to echo some of Gundel’s comments and wanted to express 
his and the fire services appreciation for the collaborative approach the ORCAA Board and staff have 
taken to this change. He noted he respects the concerns of those in opposition and wanted to add 
that the fire service has had their concerns addressed and agreed there is confusion that has existed 
up to this point regarding not realizing there was a regulation in place. Fire service does understand 
there is a risk related to the density of housing, however the new rule would not negate those things 
that already exist in building and fire code that require certain setbacks for burning activities.  
 
Cooper asked if there were any other comments. Hearing none, Cooper closed the hearing at 10:36 
a.m. 
 
Cooper requested staff to address some of the questions before moving on to discussion with the 
Board. 
 
Cooper noted the first question was related to the rule change being done around the homeless 
issue.  Johnston noted it is an element of the rule change, but not the sole reason for making the 
change.  
 
Cooper noted the next question was what the fine would be under the rule.  Shults explained we have 
a fine structure based on the individual circumstances. The fines range from $100 to several 
thousand dollars depending on many factors including size of the pile, what is being burned, etc. 
Shults added burning is complaint driven and noting if we never contacted someone about burning 
likely means they were burning cleanly, therefore we never received a complaint. 
 
Cooper noted the next question was in regard to commercial via home burning. Johnston explained 
our burn bans come in stages and when we do ban woodstove, it does not extend to commercial 
cooking establishments. Shults added our woodstove burn bans is for solid fuel burning devices and 
Burger King is not burning wood.  
 
Cooper asked if the Board had any questions or comments. 
 
Brotherton noted he appreciates those providing oral comment and wanted to acknowledge the 
written comments we received as well. Brotherton asked if staff typically respond to complainants. 
Shults stated we do try to reach out to the complainants but sometimes we don’t have the resources. 
Shults apologized to Oberlander noting we do our best, but it does happen that we don’t always get 
back to people. 
 
Vazquez wanted to affirm what Mr. Carr and the fire chief noted; until she was appointed to this 
Board, she wasn’t aware of the prohibition either. Vazquez felt this was a neat opportunity for us to 
identify a rule that has been in place a long time, that some people are not aware of, that isn’t serving 
the purpose it was designed to serve. Taking away a rule that isn’t serving a need is a good 
opportunity for an agency. 
 
Neatherlin added you still can’t burn trash, we are not changing that in the rule and felt the rule has 
outlived its purpose. 
 
Mejía asked how this affects air quality. Her recollection was King County changed the rules and it 
didn’t impact the air quality. 



 

 

Page 4 of 6 

 
Johnston noted we compared data from Lacey to a similar sized area of South King County and it 
showed that there was virtually no difference in ambient air quality. Hadley agreed noting there was 
not a significant difference in the summertime air quality in the more suburban areas, where burning 
is allowed, that were comparable to Lacey, Olympia, and Tumwater. 
 
Nelson noted Tacoma was in nonattainment due to woodstoves and they placed restrictions, but they 
never restricted campfires. 
 
Warne added, while we may be changing the rule to allow campfires, if people live in an HOA, they  
can add additional rules as well.  
 
Brotherton noted he would like to say he is in support of the rule change. ORCAA staff has done a 
good job reaching out and it means a lot that the fire chiefs are in support of this change as well. 
Brotherton did add we need to be more careful about the public hearing posts on the website. 
 
Johnston stated outreach is a work in progress – we will work on that. Johnston noted we did publish 
in the Olympian, and he was confident it had the date and time of the hearing. We did meet our legal 
obligation; however, it is important to improve our outreach as necessary. 
 
Cooper asked if there were any concerns if we waited another month. Johnston stated there were no 
concerns. There was some discussion regarding what waiting could incorporate. Myers noted the 
legal notice would be the deciding factor as to whether we fulfilled our duties. 
 
Cathey stated she is also in support of this rule change.  
 
Cooper, noting he is in support of this change, stated he understands the concerns around density 
and fire safety. Cooper asked Brooks if the fire chiefs should work with the cities and counties to look 
at a blanket fire safety regulation around outdoor burning. Brooks noted from his understanding it 
appears the cities feel what is existing in the international fire building codes is deemed to be 
universally adequate or acceptable. That would not preclude any city council from reviewing it and 
having a more stringent code. 
 
There was additional discussion regarding extending the comment period. The majority of the Board 
were in favor of moving forward with the rule change today.  
 
Neatherlin moved approval of the changes to the rule as presented. The motion was seconded and 
carried unanimously. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
OlyMAP Funding approval 
 
Johnston noted we are asking the Board to approve the expenditure of $6,000 to pay for four 
community cleanups, providing dumpsters for the areas. Johnston explained he had put together a 
briefing and sent it out. Brotherton noted the briefing was clear. Mejia wanted to let the Board know 
the county did approve the MOU with OlyMAP and are now just waiting on ORCAA. Warne asked 
what Thurston county’s role is in the process. Mejia noted Thurston County provides funds to the 
Regional Housing Council to provide a variety of services to the County’s homeless population. 
Brotherton asked if clean, dry firewood will be provided as well as garbage clean up. Johnston 
explained we have talked about that with OlyMAP and local fire officials. There is a potential for 
firewood banks, but nothing has been finalized. 
 



 

 

Page 5 of 6 

Cathey moved approval of the funding for OlyMAP in the amount of $6,000. The motion was 
seconded and carried unanimously. 
 
Cooper noted the finance committee will be discussing whether we need to amend the budget for this 
expenditure. Cooper explained we are considering if this project should be a new line item in our 
budget. Neatherlin stated felt the Board could have a fund for programs such as this and set it at an 
amount not to go over $10K allowing director to move without having to come to the Board. 
 
DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
Compliance Manager Update 
 
Shults noted we have 21 land clearing permits, which is a bit slow this time of year and we expect 
that to pick up. We attended a source test for McKinley Paper related to mercury. Shults wanted to 
explain the multiple notices of violations for Petrocard and Safeway were strictly administrative and 
not related to emissions.  Cooper asked if staff could address the large NOVs for Crown Cork & Seal. 
Shults noted the cases are open but shared we have been working with Crown to discuss and 
address needed follow-up actions. 
 
Engineering Manager Update 
 
Goodin stated McKinley Paper is a large, recycled pulp and paper mill and a major source of several 
pollutants, including mercury.  Goodin explained McKinley did a stack test and it found they were 
exceeding the federal mercury limits and received a Notice of Violation. We have been working with 
them come up with a solution to achieve compliance. McKinley added a temporary Powdered 
Activated Carbon (PAC) system which they felt should help them achieve compliance. The testing 
results appear positive and if they want to continue using the PAC, McKinley will need to go through 
the application process and install a permanent PAC system. 
 
Senior Air Monitoring Specialist Update 
 
Hadley noted she is covering the November and December monitoring data, as well as the annual 
summary. November had predominately good days, with Port Angeles having several days in the 
moderate category. It was noted Lacey had some issues with data availability and Hadley did include 
the sensor data in the slides showing the missing days.  December had a majority of good days, and 
surprisingly, a day in the Unhealthy for Sensitive Groups category at Cheeka Peak, due to a wildfire 
burning nearby. The Grays Harbor Saturation Study continues, and we did have a bit of a high peak 
that we are unsure as to what the cause was, but it was up and down the west coast. Hadley added 
we have chosen a contractor for the Cheeka Peak shelter, and we expect to be moving forward with 
that project. Hadley briefly went over the annual summary noting we did have 90% completeness at 
all sites. Hadley stated EPA is in the process of changing the NAAQS annual average from 12 to 9 or 
10; even at 9 you can see we are in good shape with our annual average. 
 
Communications Manager Update 
 
Nelson explained he has been spending a lot of time on the new web site. We do hope to launch mid-
February. We are currently in the process of allowing staff to preview the site and also making sure 
our online forms feed correctly into our database. Nelson noted the Northwest Air Quality 
Communicators group is working together to share resources. Social media outreach plans are high 
on the list. The group works well together and are looking forward to sharing the resources and 
having our messages be in line with each other.  
 



 

 

Page 6 of 6 

The woodstove replacement program continues although October through December is typically 
slow, but this year we replaced 33 during that time. We have done some sort of replacement in all 6 
counties now. This spring, Nelson continued, we are scheduled to be at the Port Angeles home show 
as well as one in Jefferson County. We will participate in the Thurston County home show that serves 
both Thurston and Mason County.  
 
Financial Services Manager Update 
 
Harding stated the State Auditor was here for 2-year audit, covering fiscal years 2021-2022.  
Unofficially no findings and they will be doing an exit at our February Board meeting.  Harding 
reminded the Board we do have a Finance Committee meeting next month and we will cover our 
2nd quarter finance report and the OlyMAP funding strategy. Harding added we have paid off our 
mortgage and we now plan on making more leasehold improvements to our building. 
 
Executive Director Update 
 
Johnston stated EPA had sent out a proposal to lower the National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
(NAAQS) for PM2.5. The current annual standard is 12 micrograms per cubic meter and the EPA is 
taking comment on lowering it to between 9 and 10 micrograms per cubic meter. EPA is proposing to 
leave the 24-hour standard the same, at 35 micrograms per cubic meter. We will be discussing this 
change and the potential implications for ORCAA’s communities at a future Board meeting.  Johnston 
noted our newest employee, Tiffany Flores, Records Clerk has been working closely with D. Moody 
and Wallner to get caught up on our archives and scanning our source files. 
 
Legislature is back in session, Johnston noted, and we are keeping a close eye on the items.  
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
There was nothing for the Good of the Order. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (per RCW 42.30.110) 
 
There was no executive session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Cooper adjourned the meeting at 11:56 a.m. 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of the ORCAA Board of  
Directors held on January 11, 2023, in Olympia, Washington. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Jeff C. Johnston, Ph.D., Executive Director  Jim Cooper, Chair 
Olympic Region Clean Air Agency   ORCAA Board of Directors    
 
DATED: _______________________________ 



������ ��		��
���� �����������������
���
�� ���������
���� � � ����� �� �!����� �"� #$%&$'(��� � )���*��+�����������������*���� �"��!����� �" #$%&$'(�"� � )"��*��+�����������������,-.�/012324$120%5 #$%&$'(�"� �)676*��+�������������������,-.�/012324$120%5 #$%&$'(�"� �)6�7*��+�������������������� �7���!�� �7�� #$%&$'(�!�8$('099 ���)6 7*��+���������������,-.�/012324$120%5 #$%&$'(�!�:;%;3215 ��)6 �*�6+������������������<�
���=>?���@
�	��<�@���	@��� AABCABDEFGH�����������������������I@
��J����
��K�����L�	�M��
����N��	���L��@	��
�	�M��
@�KE

OPQM��J�R=S�OT�JP=�T���R��S=TJQ" ���U2V21;W�U$%;�/X)�Y9(VZ2$�X[�� 67�"!�7���N��	���??	�\����L�=>?���@
�	�C��@]�	����
C������@	��<	��L�	_̂:̀ a..,b�-Yc�.d,�8,caYbe����	��FC�AfAD�
����]	��	��AC�AfAD



��������	 
��� ����� ����������� �������������� ������� �������� !�"�#�$% ����� &�'%���������� ������� �""($��)�(��(*�+�",��-)(��.�)�!" ����� �/�0�%0��������� ������� .�1�)� �23"��!""�4�$,��!"/�#�$% ����� ���%���������� ������� .(51!�"�)�(��.(��!$)�(�"�66. ����� 0/�'�%���������� ������� 7!1��)5!�)�(*�8$( (-9 ����� �/�&�%�0�������' ������� :!��8; ����� ��%���������0 ������� #�)!�5!���%�!)/�#�$% ����� �<<%<��������� ������� 6�=/�695��/�7���! / ����� �/�&�%���������& ������� >7?�23"��!""�@( 3)�(�"/�66. ����� ��<%�'�������< ������� ?�$�*�$�7�"1("� ����� &&%���������� ������� ?3-!)�@(3���8�!�-9 ����� �/�&<%<��������� ������� A%@%�2��B ����� 0/�<�%'��������� ���&��� �������� !�"�#�$% ����� '�&%&��������� ���&��� .(5$�")�.�C !�.(5%/�#�$% ����� '��%�&�������� ���&��� : ((��8;1�!""/�#�$% ����� &/���%���������' ���&��� @#D��( ���-"/�66. ����� ��<%'��������0 ���&��� 4(3�)����4�")�+�)!� ����� ��%�'�������� ���&��� E(�),�?�$�*�$�8 !$)��$/�#�$% ����� ���%���������& ���&��� ?A7�F��(*�. �  �5�.(3�)9 ����� ���%<'�������< ���&��� +�",��-)(��@)�)!��3��)(�G"�>**�$! ����� ��/''�%���������� ���&��� @3���"!�?!")�4���-!5!�)/�#�$% ����� <�%'08:H�E()�*�$�)�(� ���&��� +�",��-)(��@)�)!�8@7 ����� �/<0<%��8:H�E()�*�$�)�(� ���&��� +�",��-)(��@)�)!�6I# ����� �/<�0%�''�&0��J'�&0&& ������� @� ���!"�I�2!�!*�)" ����� �<0/&<�%<<K���L MMNOMNPQRST���������������

UVWX�Y��Z[\YU]��V[�]��YZ��\[]�W��'��6�5�)!��6��!�E+/�> 951���+����<0��J�0�����̂�Z�_̀���a��b�[cd��è��a��O�
̀�f�a�������O���e�g à��Ka���b�a�hijkilm�no�pqpr�stlukvt�wxylkilm�po�pqpr



Inspections Completed
Between 1/6/2023 and 2/3/2023

Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

MS
01/06/2023 PEDIGREE CATAMARANS INC183Full Compliance Evaluation RAYMOND

NWS
01/10/2023 ENTERPRISES INTERNATION INC0Investigation HOQUIAM

01/10/2023 WESTPORT SEAFOODS INC963Driveby WESTPORT

01/10/2023 BP #7145 ARCO ABERDEEN841Partial Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

01/10/2023 LEGACY AUTOMATION INC0Investigation HOQUIAM

01/10/2023 OCEAN GOLD SEAFOOD INC551Driveby WESTPORT

01/10/2023 OVALSTRAPPING0Investigation HOQUIAM

01/10/2023 PACIFIC SEAFOOD-WESTPORT LLC321Driveby WESTPORT

01/12/2023 MUTUAL MATERIALS - LACEY241Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

01/12/2023 RSS MANAGEMENT INC1198Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

01/12/2023 I-5 DESIGN BUILD INC (NEW)213Driveby LACEY

RDW
01/12/2023 QFC FUEL CENTER #126 - LACEY263Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

01/12/2023 AIRPORT MARKET INC1032Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

01/12/2023 AIRPORT SHELL1106Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

01/12/2023 COSTCO GASOLINE FACILITY #64 - TU519Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

01/12/2023 FRED MEYER FUEL #659423Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

01/12/2023 PILOT TRAVEL CENTERS LLC640Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

01/12/2023 SPEEDWAY #21871102Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

01/12/2023 TUMWATER CHEVRON1142Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

01/12/2023 VALLEY NUT & BOLT CO INC547Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

01/18/2023 FULL WESTERN INDUSTRIAL LLC493Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

01/18/2023 CITY OF SEQUIM DEPT OF PUBLIC WO156Full Compliance Evaluation SEQUIM

Page 1 of 2Printed 2/3/2023 3:54:20 PM

1



Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

01/18/2023 SAFEWAY - PORT ANGELES #1492169Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

01/26/2023 DEPARTMENT OF L&I-WSDA SAFETY 123Investigation TUMWATER

01/27/2023 OLYMPIA WASTE RESOURCE OPS FAC973Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

01/27/2023 EVERGREEN VALLEY GROCERY1027Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

01/27/2023 CAPITAL CITY SHELL740Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

01/27/2023 BLACK LAKE SHELL880Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

01/27/2023 AMERICAN BENCHMARK MACHINE W866Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

Page 2 of 2Printed 2/3/2023 3:54:20 PM

2



Asbestos Permit Status Report

Permit # Site Address County Completion DateRec'd

22ASB007790 	1902 Marine Drive 12/31/2022Clallam1/10/2022

22ASB007994 6130 US 101 7/8/2022Grays Harbor6/14/2022

22ASB008003 50350 Hwy 112 7/7/2023Clallam6/20/2022

22ASB008068 	422 East Bay Dr NE 9/6/2023Thurston8/24/2022

22ASB008162 Washington St, Rice St, and mile m 8/31/2023Clallam11/17/2022

22ASB008168 101 E Railroad 1/31/2023Clallam11/23/2022

22ASB008169 101 E Market St 12/30/2022Grays Harbor11/23/2022

22ASB008170 	1221 5th St Extension 12/30/2022Grays Harbor11/23/2022

22ASB008185 Annual 12/31/202312/12/2022

22ASB008187 1835 Circle Loop SE 1/12/2024Thurston12/13/2022

22ASB008188 Annual 12/30/2023Clallam12/13/2022

22ASB008192 55 Ellis Street 1/31/2023Pacific12/19/2022

22ASB008195 1400 Bethel St 1/27/2023Thurston12/22/2022

22ASB008200 400 Cooper Point Road SW 2/28/2023Thurston12/29/2022

22ASB008203 4407 40th St 2/15/2023Pacific12/29/2022

22ASB008205 	7219 Glen Annie Ln SW 1/11/2023Thurston12/30/2022

23ASB008207 Annual 12/29/2023Jefferson1/3/2023

23ASB008208 100 Mill Rd 12/29/2023Jefferson1/3/2023

23ASB008210 1235 Firpark Dr SE 1/6/2023Thurston1/5/2023

23ASB008215 	100 Indian Island Rd - B189 1/31/2023Jefferson1/11/2023

23ASB008216 1113 Legion Way SE 2/28/2023Thurston1/11/2023

23ASB008219 	Communication Tower-Tonquin Ave 1/30/2023Grays Harbor1/13/2023

23ASB008220 	2206 302nd Pl 2/6/2023Pacific1/16/2023

23ASB008221 2425 Roth Rd 1/30/2023Thurston1/17/2023

23ASB008222 18124 Corvallis St SW 1/31/2023Thurston1/17/2023

23ASB008223 1160 Ocean Shores Blvd 2/3/2023Grays Harbor1/17/2023

23ASB008224 50 Hurd Rd 1/31/2023Grays Harbor1/18/2023

23ASB008225 1610 13th Ave SW 1/30/2023Thurston1/19/2023

23ASB008228 6328 Wildflower Ln SE 1/31/2023Thurston1/20/2023

23ASB008229 630 Washington Ct 2/7/2023Grays Harbor1/22/2023

23ASB008230 17135 Heather Ln SE 2/24/2023Thurston1/23/2023

23ASB008235 614 Enterprise Dr 2/7/2023Thurston1/24/2023

23ASB008236 5415 Muir Ct SE 3/3/2023Thurston1/25/2023

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 1 of 2

3



Permit # Site Address County Completion DateRec'd

23ASB008237 1001 Washington St, Ste 3 2/10/2023Clallam1/25/2023

23ASB008238 6736 78th Ave NE 2/24/2023Thurston1/30/2023

23ASB008239 1911 198th Pl 2/2/2023Pacific1/31/2023

23ASB008240 1616 Belaire Ave 2/15/2023Grays Harbor1/31/2023

23ASB008241 	1507 Center St 2/4/2023Mason2/1/2023

23ASB008242 	2307 E 5th St 2/2/2023Clallam2/1/2023

23ASB008243 48 West Wynoochee Rd 2/8/2023Thurston2/2/2023

23ASB008244 350 Rhododendron Lane 2/24/2023Jefferson2/2/2023

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 2 of 2

4



Demolition Notifications received between 1/6/2023 and 2/3/2023

Permit# Address City Status Asb Survey Asb Permit #Rec'd Staff

23DEM006601 1680 North Montesano Street1/9/2023 Westport ASBBTD

23DEM006602 7420 Manzanita Dr NW1/10/2023 Olympia ASBBTD

23DEM006603 1309 Cooper Point Rd SW Cancelled - No structural member b1/10/2023 Olympia ASBBTD

23DEM006604 1049 W Broadway Street1/11/2023 Westport ASB

23DEM006605 1541 Kirkpatrick Rd Asb present.1/12/2023 Hoquiam ASBBTD

23DEM006606 216 Ho Hum Ln1/13/2023 Aberdeen ASBBTD

23DEM006607 2425 Roth Rd1/17/2023 Olympia 23ASB008221

23DEM006608 	834 Tipsoo Loop NOT surveyed yet.  Contracting ins1/18/2023 Rainier ASBBTD

23DEM006609 714 Crystal Springs St NE NO surveys - 4 bldgs1/18/2023 Yelm ASBBTD

23DEM006610 25808 N Place1/19/2023 Ocean Park ASBBTD

23DEM006611 395 W Old Olympic Hwy1/20/2023 Olympia ASB

23DEM006612 17135 Heather Ln SE1/23/2023 Yelm 23ASB008230BTD

23DEM006613 761 Wawona Ave SW1/24/2023 Ocean Shores ASBBTD

23DEM006614 429 77th Ave NE After the fact-change start date to y1/25/2023 Olympia ASBRDW

23DEM006615 	3800 14th Ave SE1/25/2023 Lacey ASB

23DEM006616 	2511 Birdie St NE1/25/2023 Olympia ASB

23DEM006617 2206 302nd Pl1/26/2023 Ocean Park 23ASB008220

23DEM006618 4527 13th Ave SE1/26/2023 Lacey ASB

23DEM006619 611 Cedar Ave Space 121/30/2023 Port Hadlock ASB

23DEM006620 2835 Yelm Hwy SE Start Date 2/12/231/30/2023 Olympia ASBBTD

23DEM006621 4615 Ruddell Rd SE Site Address on notification was wr1/30/2023 Lacey ASBBTD

23DEM006622 490 E Stretch Island Rd S1/31/2023 Grapeview ASB

23DEM006623 	507 S Cherry Street (corner of 240 W 5th)2/2/2023 Port Angeles ASB

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 1 of 2

5



Permit# Address City Status Asb Survey Asb Permit #Rec'd Staff

23DEM006624 	1111 Archwood Dr SW #3602/2/2023 Olympia ASB

23DEM006625 1111 Archwood Dr SW #3452/3/2023 Olympia ASB

23DEM006626 	1111 Archwood Dr SW #3082/3/2023 Olympia ASB

23DEM006627 6062 HWY 20, Spc 282/3/2023 Port Townsend ASB

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 2 of 2

6



Current ORCAA Land Clearing Burn Permits

Expiration # Burn Site Address CityFireDistrict

2/3/2023 5627 213 Ferndale Drive SequimCFD #3, Sequim

2/3/2023 5626 7777 Chicken Coop Rd Sequim

2/9/2023 5632 2567 River Rd  Seqium

2/11/2023 5635 5761 Woodcock Sequim

2/18/2023 5643 	NKA Watershed Rd Lot #1 Port Angeles

2/18/2023 5641 124 Schuringer Farm Lane Sequim

3/4/2023 5653 	352 Klahanne Rd Sequim

2/4/2023 5630 	1196 Place Road Port AngelesClallam County Fire District #2

2/12/2023 5631 NKA Diamond Vista Estates Port Angeles

3/4/2023 5656 384 Wapiti Way Port Angeles

3/1/2023 5647 14 Arnold Ln ElmaElma Fire Department

2/11/2023 5633 24 Barrett Rd N MontesanoGHFD #2, Central Park - Brady

3/1/2023 5650 382 West Wynoochee Montesano

3/4/2023 5655 5116 Wynoochee Valley Rd Montesano

2/11/2023 5634 23 Overview Ln ElmaGHFD #5, Porter/Elma/Satsop

3/2/2023 5652 2952 State Route 109 Copalis BeaGHFD #7, Copalis Beach/Ocean

3/2/2023 5651 	132 MOSSY LN BrinnonJFD #4, Brinnon

2/4/2023 5629 271 Elk Creek Rd RaymondPFD #3, Raymond

3/5/2023 5657 Parcell#85410400100 RochesterTFD #1, Rochester

2/4/2023 5628 11940 Case Rd SW OlympiaTFD #11, Littlerock

3/4/2023 5654 5335 140th Ave SW Rochester

2/16/2023 5637 22221 Bluewater Dr SE YelmTFD #17, Bald Hills

2/16/2023 5640 22215 Bluewater Dr SE Yelm

2/16/2023 5638 TP# 21736100101 YelmTFD #2, Yelm

2/12/2023 5636 15420 Vail Cut Off Rd SE RainierTFD #4, Rainier

2/26/2023 5646 10640 State Route 507 Rainier

2/26/2023 5644 10626 Katiann Ln SE OlympiaTFD #6, East Olympia

3/1/2023 5648 10345 Stedman Rd SE Olympia

2/17/2023 5639 2949 South Bay Rd NE OlympiaTFD #8, South Bay

3/1/2023 5649 3006 Lilly Rd NE Olympia

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 1 of 1

7



Complaint Report for period from 1/6/2023 to 2/3/2023

Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

County:

01/26/2023 Beam Construction Project DJM

01/26/2023 Unknown Sequiam JCJ

ClallamCounty:

01/13/2023 Joan Dailey Sequim MS

01/13/2023 Lester West Port Angeles RTM

01/19/2023 Steve Wirth Enterprises Port Angeles RTM

01/20/2023 Joan Dailey Sequim MS

01/23/2023 Steve Wirth Enterprises Port Angeles RTM

01/24/2023 Sharon Masters Price/Antonio 
Masters Morehead

Sequim JW

Grays HarborCounty:

01/17/2023 GOOBY SANFORD KIM Humptulips JW

01/17/2023 James Kavanaugh Humptulips JW

01/17/2023 Sarah Aldrich Humptulips JW

02/01/2023 Colin Vento Elma JW

02/02/2023 Colin Vento Elma JW

PacificCounty:

01/24/2023 WOLDRICH, ALBERT & 
ANNEGRET/ROWE, STEVEN & 
MELISSA

Ocean Park MS

ThurstonCounty:

01/06/2023 FRY, PATRICIA A Rainier RDW

01/08/2023 Monique Glick - Billy Judd Olympia DAN

01/09/2023 DRP HOLDINGS LLC / Scatter 
Creek Training Center

Tenino JW

01/09/2023 RIVAS, GAIL & RIVAS, DOMINIC 
J & RIVAS, TAYLOR

Olympia RDW

01/09/2023 Ruthanne and Dwyane Moncrief Olympia JW

01/09/2023 RUTLEDGE, WILLIAM O Olympia RDW

01/10/2023 Phillip & Valerie Prietto Olympia RTM

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 1 of 2

8



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

01/10/2023 Robert Anderson Olympia JW

01/12/2023 Homeless Camp Olympia JW

01/13/2023 Unknown Olympia JW

01/15/2023 SPARROWGROVE, EDWARD 
THOMAS & JULIE

Yelm BTD

01/17/2023 Homeless Camp Olympia Newer 
Homeless 
Camp - Pattison 
St NE

JW

01/20/2023 Homeless Camp - City Center (Hill) Olympia RDW

01/20/2023 Nisqually Indian Tribe Olympia RTM

01/20/2023 unknown Lacey JW

01/22/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia JW

01/22/2023 Lawrence Thielen Olympia JW

01/23/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia RDW

01/24/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia RDW

01/26/2023 BUDSBERG, THOMAS D Tenino RDW

01/26/2023 Unknown Olympia TDF

01/27/2023 ABSTON HENRICKSEN LAND & 
TIMBER COMPANY INC

Yelm DJM

01/27/2023 Rexius LLC / Gary's Bulldozing Olympia DJM

01/30/2023 JAMES, STEPHEN Olympia DAN

01/30/2023 Ken Wakefield Tenino RDW

01/30/2023 Ruthanne and Dwyane Moncrief Olympia garbage burningDJM

01/31/2023 ABSTON HENRICKSEN LAND & 
TIMBER COMPANY INC

Yelm TDF

01/31/2023 BUDSBERG, THOMAS D Tenino RDW

01/31/2023 JAMES, STEPHEN Olympia RDW

02/01/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia JW

02/01/2023 Ken Wakefield Tenino RDW

02/01/2023 Ruthanne and Dwyane Moncrief Olympia JW

02/03/2023 Ruthanne and Dwyane Moncrief Olympia RDW

02/03/2023 WRL LLC Tenino RDW

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 2 of 2

9



NOV Monthly Report
For the period 1/6/2023 to 2/3/2023

Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

CROWN CORK & SEAL 

CO INC

4248 08/09/2022 $84,000.00THURSTON 1/6/2023Rule 6.1.8 Conditions in Orders of 

Approval

LINGNAU4266 03/01/2022 $1,000.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 6.3.4(a) asbestos/demo work without 

notification/fee

CROWN CORK & SEAL 

CO INC

4273 08/11/2022 $3,000.00THURSTON 1/6/2023Rule 6.1.8 Conditions in Approval 

Orders Enforceable

MONTY D PFAFF & 

MADELINE C PFAFF 

REVOCABLE LIVING 

TRUST

4279 04/07/2022 $5,000.00THURSTON 1/10/2023Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

Rule 6.2.3 Cities and UGA--No 

Residential or Land 

Clearing burning

CROWN CORK & SEAL 

CO INC

4295 08/15/2022 $4,000.00THURSTON 1/6/2023Rule 6.1.8 Conditions in Approval 

Orders Enforceable

Rule 8.11 Record Keeping and 

Reporting

CROWN CORK & SEAL 

CO INC

4298 08/02/2022 $2,000.00THURSTON 1/6/2023Rule 6.1.8 Conditions in Orders of 

Approval

CAMPBELL4315 10/18/2022 $2,071.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 6.3.4(a) asbestos/demo work without 

notification/fee

WELLS FARGO BANK 

NA TRUSTEE // 

ALTISOURCE

4320 11/15/2022 $1,000.00Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

WESTPORT LLC4324 10/28/2022 $14,915.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

WESTPORT LLC4325 10/28/2022 $14,915.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

WESTPORT LLC4326 10/28/2022 $14,915.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

WESTPORT LLC4327 10/28/2022 $14,915.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

WESTPORT LLC4328 10/28/2022 $14,915.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

WESTPORT LLC4329 10/28/2022 $14,915.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

10



Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

WESTPORT LLC4330 10/28/2022 $14,915.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

AGATE STORE4333 11/15/2022 $500.00MASON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

ELDON STORE4335 11/15/2022 $500.00MASON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

OCEAN MARKET AND 

GAS

4336 11/21/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 727 

MARINE DR PLANT

4337 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

ABERDEEN

4338 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

CARLSBORG 

CARDLOCK SEQUIM

4339 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - ELMA 

CARDLOCK

4340 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - FORKS 

BULK PLANT & CFN

4341 12/02/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - FORKS 

CARDLOCK

4342 12/02/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

HOQUIAM BULK

4343 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

HOQUIAM CFN

4344 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

MONTESANO CFN

4345 12/02/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

MONTESANO FARM & 

HOME

4346 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

MOTTMAN

4347 11/15/2022 $500.00THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - OLD 

HWY 99

4348 11/15/2022 $500.00THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - PORT 

ANGELES

4349 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - PORT 

ANGELES MARINE INC

4350 12/02/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - PORT CFN4351 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - PORT 

TOWNSEND PLANT

4352 11/15/2022 $500.00JEFFERSON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

11



Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

PETROCARD - 

RAYMOND

4353 11/28/2022 $500.00PACIFIC Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

RAYMOND CFN

4354 11/28/2022 $500.00PACIFIC Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - SHELTON4355 11/15/2022 $500.00MASON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - SOUTH 

ABERDEEN 288

4356 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

SOUTHSIDE CFN

4357 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - TIRE 

TOWNE CFN

4358 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

TUMWATER CFN

4359 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

WESTPORT

4360 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

WESTPORT - BULK 

PLANT

4361 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

SAFEWAY - BELFAIR 

#1571

4363 12/02/2022 $500.00MASON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

SAFEWAY - HARRISON 

#4616

4364 11/15/2022 $500.00THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

SAFEWAY - MARTIN 

WAY #1952

4365 12/02/2022 $500.00THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

SAFEWAY - PORT 

ANGELES #1492

4367 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

SAFEWAY - 

TUMWATER #1503

4371 11/15/2022 $500.00THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

SAFEWAY - YELM #16194372 11/15/2022 $500.00THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

SAINT MARTINS 

UNIVERSITY

4373 12/02/2022 $500.00THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

SUNSHINE DELI MART 

& GAS

4376 12/02/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

WHALEN4378 11/22/2022 $2,500.00THURSTON Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

Rule 6.2.3 Cities and UGA--No 

Residential or Land 

Clearing burning

ARCO 70354380 11/23/2022 $500.00THURSTON Rule 8.12.4(a)(2) Gasoline testing - 

Subsequent testing - Stage 1 

EVR

DOMINIC, GAIL, & 

TAYLOR RIVAS

4398 01/23/2023THURSTON Rule 6.2.5(e) Use of Burn Barrel

Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

12



Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

WILSON OIL INC4399 01/17/2023THURSTON Rule 8.12.4(b) Testing Requirements for 

GDF

WEST4400 01/17/2023CLALLAM Rule 6.2.8(c)(4) Land clearing burn permit

DENTCENTER USA4401 01/23/2023THURSTON Rule 6.1(a) Failure to have an Approved

Notice of Construction

FUELTRAC LLC4402 01/23/2023GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

GOLDINOV4403 02/01/2023PACIFIC Rule 6.3.10(a) Disposal of Asbestos

Rule 6.3.3(a)(2) asbestos emissions during 

collection, processing, etc

Rule 6.3.8(a) Asbestos Removal Prior to

Renovation/Demolition

Rule 6.3.9(b)(1) Asbestos Work Practices - 

Controlled Area

Rule 6.3.9(b)(10) Asbestos Work Practices - 

Disturbance

Rule 6.3.9(b)(3) Asbestos Work Practices - 

Wetting ACM

Rule 6.3.6(a) Asbestos Amendments

Rule 6.3.9(b)(6) asbestos handling

GOLDINOV4404 02/01/2023PACIFIC Rule 6.3.4(c) asbestos/demo Notification

Period

Total: $343,381.00

13



Industrial / Commercial Air Permits
Pending and Final Permits for period from 01/06/2023 to 02/03/2023

Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

1ST STREET 
MARKET AND DELI

PORT 
ANGELES

Replace/upgrade 
Stage I vapor 
recovery system for 
an existing GDF 
that has been 
permanently closed.

12/30/2022Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1583 1/13/2023final permit delivered

PENINSULA SAND 
AND GRAVEL

BELFAIR 12/8/2022Sand and 
Gravel

AMADM 22ADM1579 2/2/2023final permit delivered

SIMPSON DOOR McCLEARY Renew 16AOP1172. 7/22/2022Wood Products AMAOP 22AOP1559 1/24/2023final permit delivered

CITY OF HOQUIAM-
LINCOLN STREET

HOQUIAM Install a 755 HP 
diesel emergency 
engine to provide 
power to storm and 
sewer pumps 
during power 
failure events. 
Expected emissions 
from the 
emergency engine 
include NOx, SOx, 
CO, VOC, PM, TAP 
& HAP.

6/21/2022Government AMNOC 22NOC1567 12/29/2022completeness determination 
pending

CITY OF LACEY - 
MILBANKE

OLYMPIA Install a 755 BHP 
diesel-fired 
emergency engine. 
Expected emissions 
include PM, NOx, 
CO, TAP, VOC, HAP, 
and SO2.

8/3/2022Government LEWNOC 22NOC1572 12/28/2022incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 1 of 3



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

CROWN CORK & 
SEAL CO INC

OLYMPIA renew 15AOP1129 6/11/2020Manufacturing JADAOP 20AOP1446 2/3/2022draft in progress

CUSTOM 
FIBERGLASS

ABERDEEN 8/24/2020Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 20NOC1424 4/27/2021on hold - waiting on another 
agency

DENTCENTER USA OLYMPIA after-the-fact paint 
booth

2/2/2023Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 23NOC1584 2/3/2023initial payment received, hand off 
to engineers

FORKS 
COMMUNITY 
HOSPITAL

FORKS Replacement of (2) 
4 MMbtu/hr diesel-
fired boilers. 
Emissions are not 
expected to 
increase, but 
include NOx, CO, 
PM, SO2, HAP and 
TAP.

10/12/2022Medical Facility LEWNOC 22NOC1577 12/29/2022completeness determination 
pending

GRAYS HARBOR 
ENERGY LLC

ELMA 4/13/2022Energy 
Production

MVGREV 22REV1558 12/29/2022draft in progress

INTERFOR US INC - 
PORT ANGELES 
DIVISION

PORT 
ANGELES

obtain an initial 
Title V Air 
Operating Permit

3/2/2022Wood Products LEWAOP 22AOP1556 12/2/2022draft in progress

McKINLEY PAPER 
COMPANY

PORT 
ANGELES

12/13/2022Printing/Paper 
Products

MVGNOC 22NOC1581 12/29/2022completeness determination 
pending

MOUNTAIN STONE 
AGGREGATE

TENINO Establish a new 
rock crushing plant

2/10/2021Sand and 
Gravel

LEWNOC 21NOC1478 3/19/2021draft pending source review

MOUNTAIN STONE 
AGGREGATE

TENINO Establish a new 
rock crushing plant

2/10/2021Sand and 
Gravel

LEWNOC 21NOC1478 3/19/2021waiting on SEPA

MURPHY COMPANY ELMA Establish 
enforceable limits 
to ensure potential 
to emit for VOC 
remains below Title 
V thresholds.

4/14/2021Wood Products LEWSMO 21SMO1496 5/24/2022draft pending internal review

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 2 of 3



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

PANELTECH HOQUIAM renew AOP 
11AOP864

4/2/2020Printing/Paper 
Products

JADAOP 20AOP1437 1/17/2023draft in progress

PETERSENS 
AUTOMOTIVE

PORT 
ANGELES

install paint booth 7/9/2021Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 21NOC1506 11/3/2022on hold - waiting on another 
agency

WASHINGTON 
STATE HEALTH 
CARE AUTHORITY

OLYMPIA for after the fact 
emergency 
generator

8/24/2021Government AMNOC 21NOC1523 12/29/2022on hold - per source

WEYERHAEUSER 
NR RAYMOND 
LUMBERMILL

RAYMOND install two identical 
spray-dryer mold 
inhibitor systems to 
apply coatings to 
green lumber.

8/16/2021Wood Products AMNOC 21NOC1521 1/31/2022on hold - per source

WINDFALL 
ARCHITECTUAL 

TUMWATE
R

12/13/2022Wood Products AMNOC 22NOC1578 2/1/2023draft in progress

Friday, February 3, 2023 Page 3 of 3



January 2023
Air Monitoring Report

Odelle Hadley, PhD

1



January 2023 Air Quality Summary – PM2.5

Aberdeen 2.1 4.1 8.4 31

Cheeka Peak1 0.7 1 1.4 10

Lacey 1.2 4.4 11 30

Port Angeles 3.6 9.4 13.6 26 5

Port Townsend 2.4 4.4 8.5 31

Shelton 1.9 6.1 15.6 30 1

Raymond2 -- -- -- --

Minimum
G
O
O
D

U
S
G

Maximum
Average M

O
D

U
H

VU
H

2

1) The neph pump died and I haven’t been able to get to the site to fix yet
2) Raymond the 3G modem is no longer supported and it’s taken longer than 

expected to get the right account set up with Verizon to fix



Grays Harbor Saturation Study 
Daily averages, January 2023  

3

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

31-Dec-22 5-Jan-23 10-Jan-23 15-Jan-23 20-Jan-23 25-Jan-23 30-Jan-23

Neph Data Aberdeen Harbor HS ASD shop Hoquiam

Central Pk Elem  Elma McCleary Oakville

Westport Coast Wildwood A Seabrook A Quinault Merc A

PM
2.

5



Other Monitoring News

• 1 site visit to Cheeka Peak Observatory
– Routine maintenance

• 1 quarterly site visit to Aberdeen
– Fixed the Purple Air sensor at the site

• 1 quarterly site visit to Port Angeles
– Wi-fi upgrades booted our Purple Air sensor, waiting for the Fire 

Station to replace their guest wi-fi

• Saturation Study updates
– Continuing to collect and process data on a weekly basis

• ARP project updates
– Working with Shelter One Inc. to design new trailer

– Working on RFP for site clean-up work
4



Contact

Odelle Hadley, Ph.D., Senior Monitoring Specialist
360-539-7610 x105

odelle.hadley@orcaa.org

https://www.orcaa.org

5



����������	
������������������������������� ���!!" #��$�%��� &�'�" #���#��&� �"#('��
)*+,-.,/�0112�3.*/�4+5/-6789:;<9�=>?=@=?>�A;B<�C<9D�E<9EF<9�A;B<�GEFH9I�JHH;<K=?>�@;�@L9�M?@9<?F@=;?FN�O=<9�P;K9�G@F?KF<KG�F?K�QFGL=?>@;?�JKR=?=G@<F@=S9�P;K9T�U� V?H9�=>?=@9KD�@L9�C<9�GL;BNK�W9�F@@9?K9K�F@�FNN�@=R9G�WA�G;R9;?9�XY�;<�;NK9<�B?@=N�=@�=G�:BNNA�9Z@=?>B=GL9KIU� [;B<�C<9E=@�RBG@�W9�\]�:99@�:<;R�F?A�G@<BH@B<9�;<�H;RWBG@=WN9�RF@9<=FNG�̂GBHL�FG�@<99GD�GL<BWGD�:9?H9GD�G@FH_9K�NBRW9<D�9@HÌU� J�C<9�9Z@=?>B=GL9<D�HLF<>9K�L;G9�̂=I9I�aF@9<�=G�@B<?9K�;?�F?K�L;G9�=G�<9FKA�@;�GE<FÀD�;<�@a;�]b>FNN;?�WBH_9@G�;:�aF@9<�F<9�F@�LF?KIU� c;�9Z@=?>B=GLD�FKK�aF@9<�@;�@L9�9?@=<9�C<9D�9?GB<9�FNN�9RW9<GD�H=?K9<GD�F?K�N;>�E=9H9G�F<9�a9@I�PL9H_�:;<�L;@bGE;@G�F?K�<9bG;F_�=:�?99K9KI de/f-.1gfh�ijkl�mknolpojnq�rlksjpltuvwvvwx�uyz�{|}~��w}��wv�zzzzzzzzzzzzzzz���������������}w����w}�y}�uyz�{|}~��w}��wvzzzzzz����������������������������������������zzzzzzzzzzzz������� ¡���� �����������������������zzzzzzzzzzzzzzzz��������������¢�£�¤£������������������zzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzz��������¡���¡�¥�¦��§��������������������zzzzzzzzzzzz�������¡�������̈����©§���ª�«��§¬��§���®�§¦����̄���¦�£���°ª®̄±�zzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzz���������������²«�³́́µµµ�¶���µ��©�·̧́ ¦��¹���§��£º���»jk�¼½¾¿joÀ�¼½ltojnqtÁ�Â¬«�£�̄�©����������Ã���Ã©��£Â�°Á̄�ÃÃ±zzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzz������¡��������²«�³́́µµµ���£�����©
ÄÅ+-�ÆÇÈ�-1�Ée*g7Ê@F@9�NFa�E<;L=W=@G�@L9�WB<?=?>�;:�F?A�;:�@L9�:;NN;a=?>T�U�EFE9<�̂9ZH9E@�ËBG@�9?;B>L�@;�>9@�@L9�C<9�G@F<@9K̀U�L;BG9L;NK�@<FGLU�ENFG@=HGU�HF<KW;F<KU�@<9F@9KD�EF=?@9KD�;<�G@F=?9K�a;;KU�ENAa;;KU�H;?G@<BH@=;?�K9W<=GU�K=R9?G=;?FN�NBRW9<U�EF=?@GU�@=<9GU�FGELFN@�U�<;;C?>�RF@9<=FNU�R9@FNGU�K9FK�F?=RFNGU�E9@<;N9BR�E<;KBH@G



�������������	
����
��	���������������������������������� !"##$�# �%&' %#'()�*+,�-./01�2.+3�4567�80/930,7�93:�85;<0/6/0,=)�>4551/�?55:�@.90A6,�B+/C55:�1.84�91�B+7�4/;058D7�8/:9+7�;9<0/7�59D7�93:�564/+�49+:C55:1=�)�EF5A:�G15-6H�C55:�0AD/�856653C55:�93:�93,�+566A3?�05?1=)�EF5A:�2.+3A3?�C/6�C55:�I�;5A16.+/�85501�64/�B+/�93:�8+/96/1�;5+/�1;5D/=�J�������K�LM��LNO���P��������QR�S�T�UVWXYZ[\�][̂Z_X[̀W�_abcWd�Z_�ZeeW\Xe��fgh�ifj�klmnop�qg�rglmst!!u�v#w �� !�xy'((�����z{|T)�E�456�B+/�;A3A;A}/1�1;5D/=�)�~098/�,5.+�B+/C55:�A365�64/�B+/�89+/-.00,�65�D//<�64/�291/�G5</3H�-5+�?55:�9A+��5C�I�;5+/�9A+�A3�64/�291/�;/931�0/11�1;5D/�5.6�64/�65<=�)�*53H6�5F/+-//:�64/�B+/=�E::�C55:�53/�<A/8/�96�9�6A;/�65�9F5A:�G845DA3?H�64/�B+/=�)�E�1;900�B+/�A1�/91,�65�;939?/�93:�D//<�19-/= �!�'"' !�#��v#w �(#%'(�"��$�'�$�"!'�&! �/-5+/�0A?46A3?�,5.+�B+/7�84/8D�C4/+/�,5.+�1;5D/�CA00�?5=��-�CA3:�CA00�89++,�1;5D/�65C9+:�,5.+�3/A?425+7���������������������J�������K�LM��LNO���P��������QR�S�T�UVWXYZ[\�][̂Z_X[̀W�_abcWd�Z_�ZeeW\Xe��fgh�ifj�klmnop�qg�rglms
|��L��O���N���NL�����������.+3A3?�6+914�5-�93,�DA3:�A1�A00/?90����������� ¡�64+5.?45.6�64/�¢696/�5-�£914A3?653=�¤4A1�A380.:/1�93,�45.1/450:�6+9147�85316+.86A53�:/2+A17�93:�89+:259+:�25¥/1=�¦5.�;9,�530,�2.+3�<9</+�91�9�B+/§169+6A3?�6550=�̈�©�ª�«¬®�«̄ °±²�³��������³�����́³µ��������



����������	
������	�
����������������������������������� ����!�"����������!�����#"��$%&'�(')*�+),-'.�/01�203455/�50�+6-&+(-)7�89:�;<=>?�@<9A�BCDE�F>=GA>:E�GAH�FCIJ>=D=>:K7�LMNNOP�QNNR�STUVWXY�Z[P\NNR�OT]M�UO�Z[̂�MP_VN]̀ �̂]PRU[̂�_UaVP̂�NÙ �̂UbR�NXMP[�MU[R\NNROc�7�deNWR�fONgXh�\NNR�VẀP�]NXXNb\NNR�UbR�UbY�[NXXWbQ�VNQOc
7�deNWR�iT[bWbQ�\PX�\NNR�j�_NWOXT[P�]NNVO�XMP�Z[P�UbR�][PUXPO�_N[P�O_ǸPc�k(%�-&,�l,mn('mop),�q(&�*(%&�rs(t,u�vwxyz{|}�~|�{�y|�x�����x��{��{��x}y���������������������������33��15�0�203���������/���� 7�d�MNX�Z[P�_WbW_W¡PO�O_ǸPc�7�¢VU]P�YNT[�Z[P\NNR�WbXN�XMP�Z[P�]U[PgTVVY�XN�̀PPa�XMP�iUOP�fNaPbh�gN[�QNNR�UW[�£N\�j�_N[P�UW[�Wb�XMP�iUOP�_PUbO�VPOO�O_ǸP�NTX�XMP�XNac�7�¤NbhX�NeP[gPPR�XMP�Z[Pc�dRR�\NNR�NbP�aWP]P�UX�U�XW_P�XN�UeNWR�f]MǸWbQh�XMP�Z[Pc�7�d�O_UVV�Z[P�WO�PUOY�XN�_UbUQP�UbR�̀PPa�OUgPc¥3��4�03�5¦�15�0��5§���43�̈©30ªPgN[P�VWQMXWbQ�YNT[�Z[P̂�]MP]̀�\MP[P�YNT[�O_ǸP�\WVV�QNc�«g�\WbR�\WVV�]U[[Y�O_ǸP�XN\U[R�YNT[�bPWQMiN[̂�¬®̄°�±²³́°�°́µ�¶·µ̧

�0��©�¹�0�º�»�º��¼½½¾¿À½�ªT[bWbQ�X[UOM�Ng�UbY�̀WbR�WO�WVVPQUV�ÁÂ�ÁÃÃ�ÂÄÅÆÇ�DB9C<ÈBC<D�DB=�ÉDGD=�C;�ÊG?BËAÈDCAK�ÌBË?�ËAF><H=?�GA:�BC<?=BC>H�D9G?BE�FCA?D9<FDËCA�H=@9Ë?E�GAH�FG9H@CG9H�@CÍ=?K�Î5̈3Ï�ÐÑÒÓ�ÔÕÖÖ×ØÙ�Ú·µ�²±±µ³Ú±�²®�ÛÚǗ²®³°®̧
ÝÞßà�áâãâäåæ�áçèå�éêëìíãîâçï�êð�ÞñòàÝóôõàö�òôÞ��õ�à����ë��ðð��	




���

������		�		
���������������	�	������������������	�������������
�����
��	���	������������������������� ��������!����!���	���"�!�������#"�$%$&��'(�)**+,-)(*.�/012�34�*+(1,)*1�+5�.367+43.(1�/012�12.�8+),-�+5�12.�974360*�:.;0+(�<7.)(�=0,�=;.(*4>�'�/+,?.-�/012�12.�8+),-�1+�-.@.7+6�12.�5+77+/0(;�A�B.,5+,3)(*.�C.)DE,.D�/20*2�/.,.�50()70F.-�0(�=6,07�GHGGI�J20D�(),,)10@.�.K67)0(D�/2.,.�120(;D�D1)(-�)D�+5�.),74�L)(E),4�GHGM�)(-�0D�DEN3011.-�)D�6),1�+5�34�)((E)7�6.,5+,3)(*.�.@)7E)10+(I���� �I�O6-)1.�12.�9:<==�P1,)1.;0*�B7)(�Q�R(DE,.�)�*+36,.2.(D0@.�D1,)1.;0*�67)((0(;�6,+*.DD>�/+,?0(;�*7+D.74�/012�9:<==�D1)55�)(-�8+),-�3.3N.,D�1+�E6-)1.�12.�.K0D10(;�67)(�12)1�/077�2.76�1+�;E0-.�12.�);.(*4�+@.,�12.�DEND.SE.(1�TM�4.),U�A�4.),UV�6.,0+-I���WXYZ�Z[\][̂_Ỳ�ab]c�dYbb�Yc̀bef̂�]bb�]Zâ [̀Z�gh�ijkllmZ�gâ\][YgcZn�oe[�]�a]\[Ỳeb]\�̂]\bp�hg̀eZ�dYbb�ô�gc�]_̂c̀p�DE**.DD0+(�67)((0(;>�*+(10(E014�+5�+6.,)10+(D>�)(-�'J�0(5,)D1,E*1E,.�1+�.(DE,.�12)1�12.�);.(*4�0D�6,.6),.-�)(-�3)?0(;�12.�0(@.D13.(1D�,.SE0,.-�1+�.()N7.�12.�);.(*4�1+�*+(-E*1�NED0(.DD�D)5.74�)(-�.550*0.(174�(+/�)(-�0(�12.�5E1E,.I��J2.�0(010)7�D1,)1.;0*�67)((0(;�6,+*.DD�D2+E7-�N.�*+367.1.-�N.5+,.�LE(.�MH>�GHGMI����qrstruv�wxwy�z{||}s~�����t}�~{�~�}�|rsv�{~�}u��u{�}�~���}��u��}���}�{�������������������������������������������{s��{����������}u�{u|rs�}�|}r�tu}�u}|r�s���|�{u~rs~��rs�t��r~}���~ur~}������rs�������u{ ��}�|t�~���}��}s}��~��~{�~�}�r�}s�v��s�~�}�|{s~���rs��v}ru��r�}r�����¡ }s���~�{t~��{u¢�{s�~�}��~ur~}������rs�£��r }���{�} }u���|r�}��u{�u}���{s���}�}��{��~�����}u�{u|rs�}�|}r�tu}��¤¥���¦�§���̈�©�ª¥�«����¥�¬¥�������������������©���®�����������̈���̄��������������������¥§�����������¥�����}°t��|}s~�rs��|{ �s���u{|�{s±�u}|��}��~{���{t�±�r�}��£���s�ur�~ut�~tu}���£�r|��tuu}s~�v��{u¢�s����~��z�u���²������³́µ¶··���©�̧����§�·�§��������¥�¹�¥�����©�¶¥���������¥®�́������¥���º���»�����GI�=;.(*4�6.,5+,3)(*.�3)();.3.(1�Q�L.55�/077�/+,?�/012�3)();.3.(1�)(-�D1)55�1+�-.@.7+6�)�6.,5+,3)(*.�3)();.3.(1�)(-�D1)55�-.@.7+63.(1�6,+*.DD�12)1�70(?D�1+�12.�E6-)1.-�);.(*4�D1,)1.;0*�67)(I��J20D�6,+*.DD�/077�N.�-.@.7+6.-�0(�*+(¼E(*10+(�/012�E6-)10(;�12.�);.(*4�D1,)1.;0*�67)(�)(-�/077�N.�,.)-4�1+�0367.3.(1�)1�D)3.�103.�)D�12.�D1,)1.;0*�67)(�TLE74��>�GHGMVI��L.55�/077�/+,?�*7+D.74�/012�12.�C)();.3.(1�J.)3�1+�-.@.7+6�)�/+,?�67)(�12)1�5+77+/D�5,+3�12.�D1,)1.;0*�67)(�)(-�12)1�;E0-.D�12.�-)4½1+½-)4�);.(*4�+6.,)10+(D�)(-�D1)55�6.,5+,3)(*.�3)();.3.(1I���qrstruv�wxwy�z{||}s~����¾��{��¿}�utruv�wxww���~��r���}}s�|rsv�v}ru����s�}�|{�~�ÀÁz¾¾��~r����r��rsstr��} r�tr~�{s��rs���}u�{u|rs�}�|rsr�}|}s~��{s }u�r~�{s���£�r�{�~}��~�}�Â}u�{u|rs�}��} }�{�|}s~�Â�rs�ÃÂ�ÂÄ��{u|�rs���u{�}���~�r~�£�t�}���{u�|rsv�v}ru��r��r�|rsr�}u�r~�~�}��}�ru~|}s~�{��¡�{�{�v���}}¢�s���s�t~��u{|�~�}�ÀÁz¾¾�Årsr�}|}s~��}r|�{s��{���}�~�~{�r�{�~�~�}�}�~¥�́µ¶··��������»��©�̄���¥§�������ºÆº��®¥��Ç�{��|v�È���u}�~�u}�{u~��rs��}É�}�~�~{��{|��}~}�~�}��r�~�~�{��s�qrstruv���Å}|�}u��{��~�}�ÀÁz¾¾�Årsr�}|}s~��}r|���~����u}�~�u}�{u~��{��~�}�u�{�s�ÃÁ{�}u~��Åru¢��rs���}���}Ä�ru}�r��{��{u¢�s��~{��{|��}~}�Â�Â���{u�~�}�u��~r����v�~�}�}s��{��qrstruv»��ºÆº��ª�����¥§�������®¥��́µ¶··���Ê�s}����u}��rs���r }��}}s�rs��|�{u~rs~�~{{���{u���ru��v�s���}u�{u|rs�}�}É�}�~r~�{s���~ur�s�s��s}}����rs���}s}ur��v��}~~�s��~�}|�t��~{��t��}}��r���ru~�{��~�}�ÀÁz¾¾�~}r|���©��§�ª¥�«����ª����́µ¶··����¥���������Ëµ��¥���������³¶¥§�������¥��¶¥������¥��¹��¥�§�«������~�{sr��r��t�~|}s~��~{�~�}�Â�Â��{u|��rs���u{�}������~��~�}��{r��{���} }�{��s��rs���t��{u~�s��r��t�~tu}�~�r~� r�t}��u}�t�ru��}u�{u|rs�}�|rsr�}|}s~�rs���u{�}���{sr���} }�{�|}s~��{s }u�r~�{s��rs���{r���}~~�s�����



���

��������	
��
�����������������
�������	����������������
�������	���������������������������
�������	������������	�
��
�����������������	
�������������������������������������������� !�"# $%!�&�'# ()*�+(",���!%� ��-���./%+0 %�1#)%��-2��-��3�45%��*%),!�6(���,0)7#,4���"��� !�"# $%!�40�%)"# %�45�4�89:;;<=�=>?>@AB=�@BC>AD�,0EF%4(4($%2��)7�45�4�45%��*%),!�("��/�%�40��44 �,4��)7� %4�()�45%�40F�4��%)4�)%%7%7�40�(EF�%E%)4�(4"�E(""(0)����G��H�
��IJIK�L�������M�N�
���
������O�
���	���������H��������
�������������
�������O���H���������������L��	��PQRSTU�VTUUWXRSTUP�YVVZ�QP�R[W�\WPR�]SR�]T̂�_̀VaabP�UWWcPd�a�XTUR̂QXR�eQP�PSfUWc�eSR[�VV�TU�_XRT\Ŵ�gh���������������H�������������H�������������ij�H		�
����
�kjLll��l�	
�m��������n��������������		��������_XRT\Ŵ�oph�e[SX[�SUXqrcWc�_̀VaabP�sŴPTUUWq�VT������������������N����������LL����t������
����
�O��������
���
������	
�O����������	H�����������������������������������G��H�
��uJ��LL��������������������������v�
������L������������G��H�
��uI����������	
�m��������	���������������	�����������
���w��
H�
����LL������	
�����kjLll�������O�
�����	�������������	�����������������
�������������������	
�	�
������wx�IJIy��H������� z��{#7*%4�'%$%�0FE%)4�&�1%++�6(���60 |�,�0"%�!�6(45��*%),!�E�)�*% "2�"4�++2��)7�{0� 7�E%E/% "�40�7%$%�0F��)7�45%)�*�()��FF 0$���+0 ��)��*%),!�/#7*%4�+0 �}~��-������5%�7 �+4�/#7*%4�6(���/%�F %"%)4%7�40��)7�7(",#""%7�6(45�45%�}()�),%��0EE(44%%�()��F (���)7�45%�+#���{0� 7�()���!��)7�1#)%����5%�/#7*%4�6(���/%��FF 0$%7�/!�45%�/0� 7��4�0 �/%+0 %�45%�1#)%��-���E%%4()*����5 0#*50#4�45%�/#7*%4�7%$%�0FE%)4�F 0,%""2�1%++�6(���60 |�,�0"%�!�6(45�45%�{0� 7�40�%)"# %�45�4�45%!�5�$%�45%�()+0 E�4(0)�45%!�)%%7�������G��H�
��IJIK�L�������M�wx�IJIK���������	���������H��������
���
��O�
���
����������H������������������������
������������H���
��������������������O�
�������L��H��
�v
����N������LvN����N���
�����������������������������
������
�����������������������������������O�
����	�������
�����w�������L��������������������������H������
�����������
�����H�����������		
�O���H
��������GH������
�����������������H���������H�����������
���������I��������y����������
�����
����������������������y��LvN�������wx�IJIK��H�����������O�
�����	�
�������O��������������������������H���������l�����j���
��L��
��	��������������������������
���
������	
�O����������������������
���O��H		�
����
���������������������w��
�������
������t������
�������������	�������������wH��������
������	�����
��������������kjLll���������	
�m�������������H�������������	��������H��������H
���������������w��
H�
�������l�����
�����N���H��������
�	����������������	����	H��
��������	��	�����������O�
�������
���	�
�����N����O���������������������������rUcP�RT�XTUcrXR�Q�PQqQ̂��Pr̂�W��QUc�RT�̂W�SPW�R[W�QfWUX�bP�PR̂QRWfSX��qQUd�������%��4(0)"5(F�{#(�7()*��)7��#4 %�,5�&�'# ()*�5("�+( "4����E0)45"2�1%++�6(���"F%)7�4(E%�6(45�%�,5�/0� 7�E%E/% �.$( 4#���!��)7�()�F% "0)��"�,0)7(4(0)"�F% E(43�40�7%$%�0F��� �FF0 4��)7�40�*%4�40�|)06�45%�()4% %"4"��)7�)%%7"�0+�45%�,0EE#)(4(%"� %F %"%)4%7�/!�45%�{0� 7�E%E/% "����5("�0#4 %�,5�6(�����"0�(),�#7%�%"4�/�("5()*� %��4(0)"5(F"�6(45�|%!�������F� 4)% "��)7�"4�|%50�7% "�����G��H�
��IJIK�L�������M�kjLll������������������u��w������O�
��������
����
�����O�
���JJJ���I�����	�
���
��	������������
�������
���
���������������	��������H
���������������������
����H	�������������������������m���N�����u�u����������������������
�������
��tH
������������O�
������N����
������	�
�����



���

������	
����	������
�
������������������������������������� �!�"��#��#�"��#�������$��#���%��$����#��&����&#��!#%'���($$!#!�����)��*+,((��#�  ���$�-�%�.����#��!#%�,�/�#)�"���!##!�0���$�&���/�!#)�$�.���"���#��  !&���!��1��)��2��3�����$�4�����,�/�#!������$�5���$��� �2���#%�!��,��������6�  ���������$�4�����,�/�#!��7�8�9��
�:�
;�
;�<;=��
�����=�
>�?����;�����������	
��������=@
�A@����	�����7�8��B=@	�@>�	

���	����
;@>�C�	D�	�
��
��B����E%/��#���,�/�#)���&���0�.������#����0�����%!&%�%���3������0���#���)�#��&����&#��!#%�,!#)�4���0������$��#%���F!��&#����� ��#%�����&���0�.������#��0��&!��'����+���#!���%!"�3/!�$!�0���$��/#���&%�!�����!�"��#��#���0�!�0��  ��#���$��!���&��#!�/��#��3���� �&/��������0����-����#%���0��&)�GH�&/#!.��F!��&#��'����IJK�LMJNOK�LOOPQRSTUVQJNWU�XYZTNM�WVJ�RLUW�KJLZ�NPW�OP[JZJX�\K�WVJ�RJZ]PZQLNOJ�QJLUYZJU�STUWJX�L\P[Ĵ��� _̀�abcbde�fdg�hcijikbid�l�mbcbde�fnofpq�jrqk�st�kmt�kih�hcbicbkpu�omtdtvtc�kmtct�fct�fetdwp�vfwfdwbtq̀��xtybnnbde�kmt�fetdwp�z{�hiqbkbid�ofq�idt�iy�jp�ybcqk�kfq|q�fq�fetdwp�gbctwkicu�fdg�kmt�hiqbkbid�ofq�ybnntg�bd�}hcbǹ��zd�oic|bde�ki�ybnn�kmt�hiqbkbid�bk�ofq�wntfc�~x�}}�ofq�dik�iyytcbde�f�wijhtkbkbvt�z{�qfnfcpu�fdg�qi�styict�ybnnbde�kmt�hiqbkbid�z�sciremk�kmt�wijhtdqfkbid�bd�nbdt�obkm�wijhfcfsnt�z{�hrsnbw�qtcvbwt�hiqbkbidq̀���{oi�������������������������������������������������������������������������������mbd�f�jidkm�iy�tfwm�ikmtc�nfqk�qhcbdeu�qi�bk�ofq�bjhickfdk�ki�ybnn�kmtqt�hiqbkbidq�fq��rbw|np�fq�hiqqbsnt̀���t�mfg�f�ectfk�wfdgbgfkt�hiin�fdg�mbctg�koi�dto�bdqhtwkicq�bd��rnp�fdg�}rerqk�omi�tfwm�scbde�kmtbc�iod�bjhickfdk�t�htcbtdwt�ki�~x�}}�fdg�mfvt�sttd��rbw|�fdg�tfetc�ntfcdtcq̀��zd�fggbkbidu�ivtc�kmt�qrjjtc�ot�mbctg�f�hfck�kbjt��rbngbde��fbdktdfdwt�fdg��cirdgq�{twmdbwbfdu�fdg�bd��twtjstc�ot�id sifcgtg�irc�dto�fetdwp�xtwicgq��ntc|̀��tpidg�kmt�dto�mbctqu�z�mfvt�oic|tg�ki�ctkfbd�fdg�gtvtnih�irc�t�bqkbde�qkfyỳ��{mt�qfnfcp�qrcvtp�jtdkbidtg��¡�¢����������������£���������¤���£�¥�¢����������¦�£����������§�������������£������������̈�����������ctfnniwfkt�koi�iy�irc�q|bnntg�©rdbic�ktfj�jtjstcq�bd�ctwiedbkbid�iy�kmtbc�q|bnnq�fdg�fsbnbkbtq�ki�htcyicj�fk�mbemtc�ntvtn�hiqbkbidq̀������ª̀��tsqbkt�l��t�fct�oic|bde�id�f�wijhntkt�ctvfjh�iy�fetdwp�otsqbktu�bdwnrgbde�kmt�wctfkbid�iy�ots�yicjq�nbd|tg�ki�irc�gfkfsfqt�ombwm�obnn�qbedbybwfdknp�qkctfjnbdt�qijt�iyybwt�fgjbdbqkcfkbvt�hciwtqqtq̀��{mt�otsqbkt�bq�kmt�jfbd�ofp�kmt�hrsnbwu�kmt�cternfktg�wijjrdbkpu�fdg�ikmtcq�ntfcd�fsirk�~x�}}u�irc�cternfkbidqu�fdg�irc�qtcvbwtq̀��}�wntfcu�tfqp�ki�dfvbefktu�vbqrfnnp�fhhtfnbdeu�fdg�fwwrcfkt�otsqbkt�bq�wcbkbwfn�ki�irc�jbqqbid̀��z�t�htwk�irc�dto�otsqbkt�ki�nfrdwm�bd�kmt�wijbde�jidkmq̀������̀�~rkgiic�srcdbde�bd�mijtntqq�wfjhq�l�~x�}}�mfq�qkcreentg�obkm�mio�ki�ctqhidg�ki�wijhnfbdkq�ctnfktg�ki�srcdbde�bd�mijtntqq�wfjhq�yic�ptfcq̀��̈�����������¡���������������������������������������������£���������������kmt�wbkbtqu�wirdkpu�fdg�ikmtc�icefdb«fkbidq�gtfnbde�obkm�mijtntqq�bqqrtq�ki�tdqrct�ot�fct�dik�oic|bde�fk�wciqq�hrchiqtq̀��{mt�hbnik�hci©twk�ot�fct�yrdgbde�ki�ctgrwt�mf«fcgirq�srcdbde�bd�mijtntqq�wfjhq�bq�fd�bddivfkbvt�tyyick�ki�ctqhidg�ki�kmbq�wijhnbwfktgu�qpqktjbw�qiwbtkfn�bqqrt̀�����¬̀�xtwctfkbidfn�srcdbde�crnt�rhgfkt�l�}q�gbctwktg�sp�kmt��ifcgu�~x�}}�bq�oic|bde�ki�rhgfkt�irc�crntq�ki�ctjivt�kmt�nideqkfdgbde�hcimbsbkbid�id�ctwctfkbidfn�ybctq�wfjhybctq®�bd�̄fwtpu�~npjhbfu�fdg�{rjofktc̀��{mt�irkctfwm�ki�kmt�wbkbtqu�kmt�ybct�iyybwbfnq�fdg�ikmtcq�mfq�kf|td�widqbgtcfsnt�kbjt�fdg�tyyick�grcbde�kmt�hfqk�°�jidkmq̀�{mt�crnt�



���

������	��
����������������������������������
�������������������������
����������������������	�����������������������������
�
����	���������� �!"�#�" �$�%�#&'�()��"&!��&*� ���+)�&)� ��"�*&)� ���,&!�-.�/�()0��� 1��2��������	�������������
�����������	����������������3��456789�:;<==>?�@ABCDE�7F6�@GAD96HG9?�I7FH7B���J��K��L��	����
������������M���	������N�����������	��������OP3Q3�����	����������������
������������������������������������
���L��	���������������
�����
����������	���	��������R�������������������������ST2UU�������V7HFDW�7F�9XXAG8�8A�G95B7D9�:;<==>?�7YCFY�6787Z�
���� [��T95B7D9�:;<==>?�DAFX9G9FD9�GAA\�XHGFC8HG9�7F6������������	�����	���������������������]N�

���
���̂&'�,(-� ���_&()$���#+�!�̀�(-$� ���(.�-,/�"a,,��$b����1�������L������	������������	�	����������������������	��������������������
��������ST2UU������L���������������
�����������������������
����������������8A�W9B5�6CG9D8�:;<==>?�XCF7FDC7B�7F6�5ABCDE�6CG9D8CAFc������3��d����ST2UU��������������L��
��L�������
���������������
����������
���K��������
����������������������������7F6�8W9�G9YHB7896�DA\\HFC8E�eFAf�7ZAH8�AHG�fAGe�7F6�AHG�G9gHCG9\9F8?h�7F6�fW9F�f9>G9�fAGeCFY�CF��������������������������������	�����������	�����
���i����
�L����������������������L�������������j���
�������
������
��
��������������������������	�������������������


	B1-February8-2023BoardAgenda
	B2-FY23-2ndQuarterUpdate
	B3a-DraftBoardMinutesJanuary11-2023
	B3b-ExpendituresDisbursements
	B5-ComplianceManagerUpdate
	B6-EngineeringManagerUpdate
	B7-SeniorAirMonitoringTechnicianUpdate
	B8a-campfire brochure
	B8b-campfire single page
	B9-Jeffs performance measures



